
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE 

 

Tuesday 27th February 2024, 7.00 pm - George Meehan House, 294 
High Road, N22 8JZ (watch the live meeting here, watch the 
recording here) 
 
Councillors: Zena Brabazon (Chair), Felicia Opoku, Elin Weston,  
Lotte Collett, Marsha Isilar-Gosling, Cressida Johnson and Ibrahim Ali 
 
Quorum: 3 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending 
the meeting using any communication method.  Although we ask members of 
the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to include the 
public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting should be 
aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or recorded by 
others attending the meeting.  Members of the public participating in the 
meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral protests) 
should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or reported on.  By 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)   
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
The Chair will consider the admission of late items of urgent business. Late 
items will be considered under the agenda item they appear. New items will 
be dealt with at item 11 below.  
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the 
authority at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzE3MGIwMTctY2VlYy00YTc3LWEzNWUtNTJhZDRkMDFjZDQ5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22e67536a4-b452-472c-aec8-bb57ba00ba64%22%7d
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PL_DSjoFpWl8tSPZp3XSVAEhv-gWr-6Vzd


 

existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that 
consideration, or when the consideration becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in 
that matter the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of 
the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to 
prejudice the member’ judgement of the public interest.   
 

5. STAYING PUT ARRANGEMENTS - THE GUIDANCE AND THE IMPACT IN 
HARINGEY  (PAGES 1 - 6) 
 

6. STABILITY PANEL - VERBAL UPDATE   
 
To receive a verbal update on the Stability Panel.  
 

7. PRIVATE FOSTERING ANNUAL REPORT - VERBAL UPDATE   
 
To receive a verbal update on the Private Fostering Annual Report.  
 

8. FOSTERING PANEL ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23  (PAGES 7 - 20) 
 

9. FAMILY STRESS FACTORS WHICH LEAD TO PUBLIC LAW OUTLINE   
 
To receive a presentation on the Family Stress Factors which lead to Public 
Law Outline. 
 

10. CORPORATE PARENTING WEEK - VERBAL UPDATE   
 
To receive a verbal update on Corporate Parenting Week. 
 

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 
 

 
Bhavya Nair, Principal Committee Co-ordinator 
Email: bhavya1.nair@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Fiona Alderman 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ 
 
Monday, 19 February 2024 
 



 

Page 1 of 5  

 
Report for:  Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee  
 
Item number: 5 
 
Title: Staying put arrangements  
 
Report  
authorised by :  Ann Graham,  Director,  Children’s Services 
 
Lead Officer: Beverley Hendricks, 0208489 2160;  
 Beverley.hendricks@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Ward(s) affected: ALL  
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 To provide CPAC with an update on Staying Put for care leavers 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 Members to note 
 
3. Reasons for decision  

 
N/A 

 
4. Background information 

 
4.1 When young people living in foster care turn aged 18 they are no longer legally 

in ‘Care’ and therefore fostering arrangements no longer apply.  Staying Put is 
an arrangement that enables a young person over the age of 18 to remain living 
with their carer if this is what the young person and the carer both want to 
happen.   
 

4.2 A young person who continues to live with their carer post 18 effectively 
becomes a lodger in the Staying Put carers home.  The Staying Put carer under 
these arrangements is in effect the landlord for the young person.  Despite the 
legal basis changing the treatment of such young people should be no different 
to a fostered child. 

 
4.3 The benefits for a young person of Staying Put is that it promotes the gradual 

transition from care to independent living.  It recognises that many young 
people may be in the middle of completing their current education or requiring 
an immediate but time limited bridging placement prior to university or a 
planned move to permanent accommodation.  It also recognises that some 
young people in care display delayed maturity and additional vulnerabilities 
which mean they need continued support and stability.  Staying put for those 
young people and carers who want to follow this route minimises disruption to 
young people’s living arrangements during a critical phase of their transition. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5

mailto:Beverley.hendricks@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 2 of 5  

4.4 Research and practice show that care leavers have the best chance of success 
if they are supported to have the same level of care and support that their peers 
would expect from a reasonable parent and that they are provided with the 
opportunities and chances needed to help them move successfully to 
adulthood.  Staying put provides the opportunity. 
 

5. Preparing for Staying Put 
 

5.1  Discussions about post 18 planning commence with young people before they 
 turn 16 and are documented in pathway plans from the age of 15 ½ onwards, 
 being reviewed and updated at least every 6 months.  One element of 
 preparing to live independently is considering where a young person would like 
 to live post 18.  Options for young people in foster care are staying put or a 
 move to lesser supported shared accommodation prior to then moving to hold 
 their own tenancy and full independent living.  
 
5.2 The onversation with the young person and the foster carer about what staying 

put means for both parties is held.  This includes exploring financial support for 
the staying put carer and the young person’s responsibilities to the 
arrangement.   Alternative accommodation options are explored.  The aim being 
that the young person can make an informed choice about their post 18 
accommodation.   

 
5.3  The viability of the ‘staying put’ arrangement should be considered at the young 

person’s looked after review around their 17th birthday and should set out the 
actions required to ensure any final arrangements are in place by the young 
person’s 18th birthday.  Both the fostering service and the allocated social 
worker are responsible for ensuring the carer and young person are clear on the 
criteria and financial framework for converting the foster placement to a ‘staying 
put’ arrangement and have been fully informed of the National Insurance, 
Income Tax and welfare benefits issues for the foster carer(s) and welfare 
benefit issues for the young person. 

 
5.4  The allocated worker and supervising social worker assist the carer and young 

person to complete Staying Put Agreement. Within the agreement the carer will 
be expected to provide oversight of the young person and continue to support 
the young person to gain the skills for independent living, and report any 
concerns to the allocated personal advisor. The carer will also be expected to 
keep the room in good condition and report any concerns to the fostering 
service. 

 
5.5  The staying put agreement covers matters such as:  
 

• The financial arrangements 
• Preparation for independence tasks and support 
• The welfare benefit claims 
• Visitors and overnight stays 
• Staying away overnight and informing carer of movements 
• Education, training or employment (ETE) activities 
• Any arrangements related to health needs 
• Move on arrangements 

Page 2



 

Page 3 of 5  

 
Summary flow chart:  
 

 
Staying put arrangements are kept under review at the YAS accommodation panel to 
ensure that moving on plans are being progressed.  The aim is that by the age of 21 
staying put arrangements will have come to an end and young people will have 
transitioned fully to independent living.   
 
6.  Financial arrangements 

 
6.1 The staying put carer can receive from the Young Adults Service £205 per 

week to support the staying put arrangement.  The young person is entitled and 
supported to claim universal credit as they turn 18.  If the staying put carer is in 
agreement, the young person can also claim the housing element of universal 
credit and this is paid to the staying put carer.  This can only be claimed where 
the carer is not already in receipt of means tested state benefits otherwise this 
impacts on the income for the staying put carer.  Where housing element of 
universal credit is claimed this amount paid to the carer by the Young Adults 
Service is reduced and payment made is to top up to the total of £205.  Carers 
must be made aware of the income tax and national insurance regulations 
relating to post eighteen placements.  In certain circumstances payments for 
post eighteen placements may require the completion of a relevant tax 
declaration.  Specialist financial, benefit and tax advice should be sought in all 
circumstances to ensure that carers are fully aware of the implications of 
providing a placement to a young person over the age of eighteen. As tax and 
NI arrangements can change each year it is important that carers seek 
guidance from the HMRC annually. 

 
6.2 A young persons income can be supplemented with 16 -19 education bursary, 

training allowances and earned income.  The young person will be expected to 
be responsible for the bulk of their grocery costs, all of their clothing and toiletry 
requirements, travel etc. A contribution of £10 will be expected to be provided 
by the young person to their carer to cover any miscellaneous costs associated 

Page 3



 

Page 4 of 5  

with living in the family household, this is also in place to enhance the young 
person’s life skills for future independent living.  

 
7.  Young People at University 
 
7.1 Young people who have left their placement to attend university may wish to 

return to their former foster carers during vacation periods with their carers 
agreement.  In such circumstances care leavers at university receive £100 
(maximum of 3 weeks at Easter, 3 weeks at Christmas and 14 weeks during the 
summer) contribution towards their rent during vacation periods and can use 
this to provide for their room. Further contributions can be arranged privately 
between the carer and young person for additional expenses incurred. The 
additional contributions from the young person will need to be made from the 
young person’s university bursaries and grants.  The payment of £205 to the 
care is ceased.  
 

7.2 If the young person wishes to stay with the former foster carer whilst at 
University then the ‘Staying Put’ arrangement continues at the rate of £100 a 
week for support paid by Local Authority and the young person pays their 
Housing Element of Universal Credit to the Staying Put carer at a rate of £105 
per week made up of rent, utilities and internet access which is to be funded out 
of the young person’s loans, bursaries and grants. During the holidays the LA 
will pay directly to the former foster carer £205.    

 
8.  Support for carers 
 
8.1  Fostering regulations no longer apply after the young person has reached the 
 age of 18 however the following standards continue to apply to Staying Put 
 arrangements: 
 

• A return to fostering panel when there is change of circumstances. 
• New Disclosure and Barring Service check every three years on all adult 
 members of the household, regular visitors, and children of the carers 
 aged sixteen and older. 
• Health and safety checks. 
• Attending required training and optional support groups. 
• Regular oversight and support from the supervising social worker. This 
 will be 2 x a year unless other arrangements agreed. 
• Young people post 18 will require a valid police check in households 
 where foster children are living and will be the responsibility of the 
 supervising social worker to ensure completion of the task and ongoing 
 monitoring of the young person as part of the fostering processes and 
 procedures in relation to the fostered children under the age of 18.  
 

9.  Current staying put arrangements: 
 
9.1 We currently have 31 staying put arrangements in place for care leavers, 14 of 

which has been created within the last 12 months. The annual cost of these 
placements to the local authority is £324.4k.  The average weekly cost is 
£201.26 per week. 

    

Page 4



 

Page 5 of 5  

9.2   A grant is received from the DfE to support the making of staying put 
 placements.  This is awarded annually. The grant received for 23/24 will be 
 £238.6k  A shortfall of £85.8k.   

 
9.3 As the average costs of supported accommodation for young people over the 

age of 18 is currently in the region of £550 to £600 per week, staying put 
 remains a financially preferrable option for young people whilst also providing 
young people with the opportunity to have the same level of care and support 
that their peers would expect from a reasonable parent to help them move 
successfully to adulthood.   For these reasons staying put is very much 
 promoted as a favourable post 18 options.   

 
10.  Contribution to strategic outcomes 

 
10.1 It links to the corporate priorities. 

 
11.  Use of Appendices 

 
N/A 
 

12.  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
N/A 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 13  

 
Report for:  Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee  
 
Item number: 8 
 
Title: Fostering Panel annual report 2022-23 
 
Report  
authorised by :  Beverley Hendricks, Assistant Director,  Children’s Safeguarding 

& Social Care  
 
Lead Officer: Keith Warren, Head of Service 
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 This report covers the year from 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023, providing 

details of the Fostering Panel activity and the range of assessments on which  

panel members were asked to make a recommendation.  

 

1.2 The Fostering Panel provides a quality assurance role that enables it to challenge 

the quality of reports and feedback information on good practice, as well as that 

which falls short of the National Minimum Standards (NMS) or is not in the interest 

of children. 

 

1.3 In England and Wales, there are currently estimated to be over 162,400 children 

in local authority care (Department for Education (2021) Children looked after in 

England including adoptions: 2020 to 2021).  These are some of the most 

vulnerable children in the country, with the majority placed in the care of local 

authority foster carers.  

 

1.4 Haringey’s Fostering Panel functions under Regulation 25 of the Fostering Service 

Regulations (England) 2011.  

 
 
2. Recommendations  

 
2.1. For Members to note content 

 
3. Reasons for decision  

 
N/A 

 
4. Background information 

 
4.1 The Fostering Panel 

Page 7 Agenda Item 8



 

Page 2 of 13  

 

4.1.1 Fostering Panels continue to be held virtually and may remain so for the 

foreseeable future. Panel members have fully adapted to the virtual meetings and 

make good use of the reflection period at the end of the meeting to discuss any issues 

or feelings about the cases.  Applicants and foster carers present as more relaxed and 

confident as log into virtual meetings from home.  Social Workers save travelling time 

as they can access the meeting from their office. There are still occasional delays 

waiting for people to join, however, the benefits continue to outweigh the difficulties. 

 

4.1.2 Panel members have remained diligent in their task of holding Haringey children 

in mind when considering the suitability of those wishing to care for them as Foster or 

Connected Carers. The generic term Carers will be used throughout this report when 

referring to both.    

 

4.1.3 The Fostering Panel is held twice a month, on the first and third Tuesday of the 

month, with the possibility of adding or cancelling panels as necessary. The rota is 

arranged well in advance allowing for changes as necessary. The quorum for the 

panel is a minimum of 5 central list members, however, 6 members sit on each panel 

to ensure it remains in quorum if a panel member cannot attend on the day.  

4.2  Fostering Panel Central List 

4.2.1 The Fostering Services (England) Regulations 2011 require the LA to maintain a 

‘Central List’ of Panel members with a range of relevant skills, knowledge and 

experience, from which the membership of any panel meeting can be drawn. 

Haringey’s Central List also remains diverse and reflects the wider community.   

4.2.2 The central list consist of: 

Role Background 

Independent 
Panel Chair 

Chair of two fostering panels and a  RAA 

Social work background  

Independent Vice 
Chair 

Care experienced - fostered and adopted,  Vice Chair  

Independent 
Panel Member  

Former Manager for Family Link, disability team 

Independent 
Panel Member 

Adopter - Children’s Centre Officer   

Independent 
Panel Member 

Registered Foster Carer, 0-18 -  specialising in teenagers and 
remand fostering 

Independent 
Panel Member  

Qualified Social Worker -  Placements, Foster Carer Recruitment 
& Assessment Officer for IFA  

Independent 
Panel Member  

Care experienced -   Previously advised the Who Cares Trust 
and Coran Voice  working with children in care 

Page 8



 

Page 3 of 13  

 

 

4.2.3 Two agency social work representatives have recently resigned as panel 

members as they will be leaving the local authority (LA) therefore, new members will 

be recruited.     

 

4.3 Panel Advisor and Panel Administration 

4.3.1 The Fostering Service Manager sat as the Panel Advisor until January 2023 

when an experienced and dedicated Panel Advisor was recruited on a temporary 

basis.  

4.3.2 Panel members greatly appreciate the knowledge and experience offered and 

the quality assurance role in gatekeeping reports to ensure they are fit for purpose. 

4.3.3 The Panel Administration Manager ensures the effective functioning of the 

Panel, including the distribution of reports, minuting the meeting, and supporting the 

central list. The efficient functioning of the panel is largely due to the efficiency of the 

Panel Administration Manager. 

 

 

 

 

4.4 Panel members’ Appraisals 

Independent 
Panel Member 

Care experienced – Senior Youth Support Development Worker 

Departmental 
Panel Member  

Health  representative - Looked After Children Nurse 

Departmental 
Panel Member   

Life Story Work Lead 

Departmental 
Panel Member   

Haringey Councillor - Corporate Parenting Board 

Departmental 
Panel Member  

Social Work Team Manager – Social Work in Schools Project  
lead   

Departmental 
Panel Member  

Independent Reviewing Officer - Qualified Social Worker 

Departmental 
Panel Member  

Supervising Social Worker 

Departmental 
Panel Member  

Qualified Social Worker - Member of a fostering household 

Departmental 
Panel Member  

Independent Reviewing Officer - Qualified Social Worker 

Non-voting roles  

Panel Adviser Fostering Service Manager 

Minute Taker 
Fostering Panel Admin Manager 

Page 9



 

Page 4 of 13  

4.4.1 Panel Member appraisals were completed in January 2023, with all  panel 

members confirming their wish to continue with their role. Panel members have 

commented positively on the general functioning and effectiveness of the Panel, as 

well as the way they are chaired. Panel No significant concerns were raised about any 

panel members’ performance, and it is clear that they remain committed, 

knowledgeable, and child-focused in their practice.  

4.4.2 Panel members had previously commented on the challenges of Connected 

Carer cases, particularly when placing additional children leads to overcrowding. Many 

felt training on the assessment process and legislation would increase their 

understanding.  

4.4.3 Panel members provided separate feedback to inform the chairs appraisal, which 

was conducted by the Agency Decision Maker and Panel Advisor in March 2023. 

4.5 Panel training 
 

4.5.1 New panel members receive induction on the current legislative framework, 

research and Case Law and observe two panels before their first sitting. Learning 

material is shared with panel members as part of their ongoing development. Panel 

members attended training consisting of a workshop on Connected Carers and 

Special Guardianship assessments, which they found particularly helpful. In addition, 

three young people from the Aspire Programme accompanied by the Participation 

Officer delivered a presentation on the programme and their own journey in care. 

 

4.6 Panel activity throughout the year 

4.6.1 The Fostering Panel met on 21 occasions out of a possible 23, between April 

2022 and March 2023. One panel was cancelled due to quality assurance issues and 

awaiting DBS or Medical returns. The other was used to host mandatory training for 

Panel members.   

 

4.6.2 The tables below provide data on Panel activity over the year. Where available, 

data over the two previous years is included to allow some comparison. 

Type and number of cases 
presented 

2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 

General Fostering Household 
approvals 

5 10 3 

Connected Carers approvals 4 6 5 

Return to panel following 1st Year 
Annual Review 

8 5 10 

Long Term Matches 18 10 6 

Return to panel following 3 year 
Review  

0 3 0 

Return to panel at panel’s request  0 1 4 

Page 10



 

Page 5 of 13  

Change of approval 7 1 2 

Regulation 25 Extension 5 4 14 

Deregistration 0 2 0 

Deregistration of Connected Carer   10 

Resignations acknowledgement   7 5 6 

Review following Standards of Care 0 2 1 

Return to panel following an allegation 3 3 3 

Deferrals 1 0 1 

Foster carer not approved by ADM 0 0 2 

Total number of cases presented 58 52 67 

 
 

4.7 Fostering approvals 

Fostering Approvals   2020/21  2021/22 2022/2023 

General Fostering Households 5 10 3 

Connected Carer Households 4            6             5   

 
4.7.1 There was a significant decrease in the number of general fostering household 

assessments compared to the previous year. Panel deferred making a 

recommendation on one case in order for a second opinion visit to be undertaken, 

which was ratified by the Agency Decision Maker (ADM). The panel recommended 

approval of the two other fostering households, one of which was ratified by the ADM, 

while The ADM decided more information was needed regarding the other, which was 

later approved. 

4.7.2 Connected Carers who are already known to children may receive temporary 

approval to care for them, pending a full assessment.  Once completed, they are 

presented to the panel. All five Connected Carer households were recommended for 

approval and ratified by the ADM. An increasing number of these Carers will seek a 

Special Guardianship Order, which if granted will lead to the child’s automatic 

discharge from care.   

Regulation 25, Extension Request 2020/21 
 

2021/22 2022/23 

Connected Carer households  5  4 14 

 

4.7.3 Connected Carer assessments must be completed and ratified within 16 weeks, 

otherwise their temporary approval ends and the placement becomes unlawful. In 

exceptional circumstances, an additional 8 weeks extension can be granted 

(Regulation 25 of the Care Planning & Placement Review (2010) in order to complete 

the assessment.  

4.7.4 These requests are usually made when there is a delay in the return of a DBS or 

medical due to late submissions. They are also made when there is a delay in SGO 

hearings and an extension is required to prevent the placement becoming unlawful. 

Page 11



 

Page 6 of 13  

Fourteen extension requests were made during this period. This is a 71% increase 

compared to 2021/22.  

 

4.8 Fostering Matches 

Fostering Matches   
                                                                     

 
2020/21                         

 
2021/22                         

 
2022/23 

Total number of children matched with 
permanent Foster Carers 

      18 10 6 

Children matched with  Haringey Foster 
Carers 

        8            5 5 

Children matched with Independent 
Fostering Agency Foster Carers 

      10          5 1 

 
4.8.1 There was a 60% overall decrease in children permanently matched with their 

Foster Carers, though the same number of children were matched with Haringey 

carers as 2021/22.  This decrease in overall approvals is likely to be due to changes in 

social workers leading to delays in completing assessments.  It is always positive to 

see Haringey children matched with Haringey carers, as enables them to remain within 

the borough and their community.  

 

4.8.2 Children aged 15 and over continue to be matched with their carers through their 

Statutory Review process, and reports presented to the ADM for ratification.  

Permanency is also achieved when children  are placed with family members 

approved as Connected Carers and through Special Guardianship Orders (SGO) both 

of which are on the increase across the UK.  

 

4.8.3 The child's voice is crucial at all stages of their journey in care and is particularly 

important during matching cases. Virtual panels have often provide the opportunity to 

hear directly from the child during matching meetings. Panel members have had the 

pleasure of observing the attachment between young children and their carers during 

virtual panel meetings. Direct feedback from children using any of the many tools 

available is very much encouraged.  

 

4.9 Fostering/Connected households 1st and 3 Year Reviews 
 

Fostering/Connected 1st Year Reviews 
 

2020/21 
 

2021/22 2022/23 

General/Connected Carer households  8   5 10 

 

4.9.1 It is  a regulatory requirement that Foster/Connected Carers return to the 

Fostering Panel following their first year of practice and after their 1st-year Annual 

Review.  Panel members take note and comment on the Reviewing Officer’s 

recommendations concerning the Foster Carer’s ability to meet the NMS and 

continued approval in relation to the number of children, age range and type of 

placement. 

Page 12



 

Page 7 of 13  

 

4.9.2 Sixteen general and Connected Carer approvals were ratified by the ADM during 

2021/22. These Carers should have returned to  the panel following their first Annual 

Review during this reporting period. However as only ten Annual reviews were 

conducted it is likely that the LA continue to hold a backlog. A dedicated Reviewing 

Officer has been appointed supported by two Independent Reviewing Officers to help 

reduce the outstanding reviews.  

 

4.9.3 Panel recommended continued approval of all ten Carers which was ratified by 

the ADM. 

 

4.9.4 Panel members have been pleased to note the increase in Children’s Social 

Workers attending panel.  Their contribution is highly valued and key to understanding 

the Carer’s ability to meet the needs of the child in their care and ability to work in 

partnership with professionals. It would be helpful if more CSWs could contribute to 

the Carers Annual Review itself by completing the feedback forms sent to them in 

advance.  

 

Three Yearly Reviews 
 

2020/21 
 

2021/22 2022/23 

General fostering/Connected  households    0 3 0 

 

4.9.5 Carers return to panel following their third annual review provides the opportunity 

to acknowledge their positive work, as well as discuss any gaps in their practice and/or 

local authority support. 

No three -yearly reviews were presented to Panel during this period. 

 

4.10 Standards of Care and Allegations 

 

Return to panel following Standards 
of Care or Allegations 

2020/21 
 

2021/22 2022/23 

Standards of Care  0 3 1 

Allegations  3 3 3 

 

4.10.1 Panel heard one Standard of Care case following an investigation during this 

period. involving a data breach which was investigated and training recommended by 

the LA and panel, which was ratified by the ADM. 

 

4.10.2 There have been three allegations against Foster Carers during this period 

involving allegations of physical harm or threat of physical harm. These were all jointly 

investigated with the police and one was unfounded as another young person in the 

placement was present and could confirm the child was not harmed by the carer. The 

second made by the child’s father several months after the child had been transitioned 

into another family members care. The allegation was unclear and could not be 

substantiated. The third involved a baby found to have serious injuries three months 

after returning to the parents’ care. The foster carer was  included in the investigation 

Page 13



 

Page 8 of 13  

until a medical timeline of the fractures could be established, after which they were 

deemed unfounded. The ADM ratified panel’s recommendation of continued approval 

for all three carers.  

 

4.10.3 Although there is no formal role for panel once a Carer has resigned during an 

investigation, it is deemed to be good practice to notify the panel of such resignations. 

Panel was notified of such a case involving a substantiated safeguarding allegation.  

 

4.10.4 Panel was satisfied that all investigations had been correctly conducted and the 

reasons for the recommendations evidenced. There is however concern about the 

lengthy delays in returning Carers to panel following completion of investigations.  

Carers are placed on hold during investigations which is very stressful. Panel has 

recommended these cases are promptly reviewed after investigation and returned to 

panel within two months.  

 
4.11 Resignations and De-registrations 

 

Resignations and De--Registrations 2020/21 
 

2021/22 2022/23 

Resignations   7 5 6 

Connected Carers de-registration   0 0 10 

De-Registrations  0 2 0 

 

4.11.1 Although Fostering Panels do not need to be notified of resignations under 

Fostering Regulations it is deemed good practice as  provides an opportunity to 

discuss whether anything could have been done differently to prevent the resignation. 

This is important given the current shortage of Foster Carers, the resources that go 

into assessing and approving Foster Carers and most importantly, the possibility that a 

resignation could disrupt a child’s placement.  

4.11.2 There were six resignations during this reporting period and the majority were 

planned retirements. Ten Connected Carers were also de-registered after the child 

they cared for reached majority.  

4.11.3 No de-registration recommendations were made during this period..  

4.12 Fostering Panel’s role in Quality Assurance Evaluation of work submitted to 
Panel  

4.12.1 Panel recommendations are based on the quality of the assessments and other 

paperwork it receives. Panel will regard an assessment report as of sufficient quality 

when it provides comprehensive information about the applicant, their abilities and 

motivation.  It should identify their strengths, any vulnerabilities and provide a clear 

analysis and reason for the recommendation that is made. This process also applies to 

Reviews for continued approval and long-term matches.  

Page 14



 

Page 9 of 13  

4.12.2 Fostering approvals: Fostering Assessments during this period were generally 

of a good quality, providing a clear understanding of applicants’ history with sufficient 

detail and analysis to evidence both the assessor’s and then panel’s recommendation. 

 

4.12.2.1 One case was deferred as Panel requested a second opinion visit for more 

information on the applicant’s communication skills. This was positive and the Carer 

was later recommended for approval.  The ADM also requested additional information 

before making a decision in relation to two assessments as insufficient information had 

been included.  

 

4.12.3 Connected Carers approvals: Most applicants presented to panel for approval 

as Connected Carers are also applying to become Special Guardians. Panel have 

generally found these assessments to be well written, however, little attention is given 

to the applicant’s understanding of the Connected Carer’s role, as Carer’s are often 

reluctant to complete written records or attend training. Panel now seek assurance that 

they understand the role.  

 

4.12.4 Fostering matches: Permanency matching reports are often very detailed, 

outlining children’s needs and the carer's ability to meet them. Support plans would be 

a helpful addition to these reports as can be added to as the child grows.  

There has been some drift in matching cases being presented to panel following the 

long-term decision. The LA has introduced a Permanency Tracking Panel to address 

this.  

 

4.12.5 Annual Review reports: Annual Reviews should provide an additional layer of 

independent scrutiny of Carers’ practice and the local authority’s monitoring and 

supporting role. The quality of Annual Review reports has been variable during this 

period.  During the first part of this period, they contained minimal detailed information 

or challenge of Carers who had not maintained regular records of the child in their care 

or attended the required number of training. The quality of these reports has, however, 

improved as now outline the Carer’s ability to meet the NMS using evidence of care 

provided and their understanding of their role. All reviews include a clear 

recommendation and action plan, however, not all Carers are compliant in attending 

training and submitting regular records.  

 

4.12.6 Feedback from Children’s Social Workers: Children’s Social Workers do not 

routinely provide written feedback for Carers Annual Reviews.  This is a gap in key 

information as children’s social workers have regular contact with children and, 

therefore, are best placed to provide feedback on how well the carer is meeting the 

child’s needs. This has been raised within the department and there has been some 

improvement.  

 

4.12.6.1 Children’s written feedback, including those of the Carer’s own children living 

in the household, is another area needing attention.  This feedback is more commonly 

Page 15



 

Page 10 of 13  

made available when the Carer returns to panel, but should be provided for the Annual 

Review meeting. 

 

4.12.7 Promoting difference and diversity: there is evidence that a number of 

Carers proactively promote children’s understanding of their heritage and identity. 

There is less understanding of gender identity or sexual orientation. Therefore, it would 

be helpful if a virtual workshop could be provided. 

 

4.12.8 Training gaps: There are still some gaps in some Carers’ core training and 

completion of the Training, Support and Development Standards that should be 

completed within the first year of approval.  Carers’ training profiles are not always 

presented to Annual Reviews or Panel, making it difficult to identify outstanding 

training needs.  

 

4.13 Carers feedback on the Panel process  

4.13.1 Carers attending Panel are asked to provide feedback on their panel 

experience. There were 15 responses ranging from new applicants, Connected 

Carers, Matches,   Standards of Care and de-registration. Of those, 9 described their 

experience as ‘Excellent’ and  8 as “Good’.   

4.13.2 All Carers felt Panel was respectful and made them feel comfortable: 

 “The panel were all very nice and polite individuals, and treated me and my 

husband with curtesy and respect.  The chairperson was extremely 

professional, and the panel meeting went very well.” 

 “It was good meeting clear, comfort and treated with full respect.” 

 “It was my first-time Reviewing. I think it went well as I was made to feel 

comfortable by the Chair.” 

 “Everyone inc. the chair was courteous and pleasant. They explained what to 

expect. They let me take it at my pace when it became difficult.” 

4.13.3 However not all Carers were as positive about the process:  

 “The Chair stopped me from talking a few times and I felt was being a little rude 

and dismissive, but the CSW explained to me that the Chair had to make sure 

everybody get to speak within the time slot given and was just being conscious 

of the time. I think they should probably extend the time slot a bit as there is 

always a lot to talk about our young people.” 

 “The panel went well the chairperson did a good job except some members of 

panels ask irrelevant questions just for the sake of asking and to be noticed by 

the panel.” 

4.13.4 Despite the above comment these Carers described their overall experience as 

‘Good’. 

Page 16



 

Page 11 of 13  

4.13.5 All Carers were called into panel within their time slots and 9 stated that they 

were notified if panel was running late.   

4.13.6 Despite best efforts, panel can overrun for various reasons, including panel 

discussions and discussions with Carers occasionally taking longer, technical 

difficulties and waiting for Carers or Social Workers to join.  This is an area that the 

panel will monitor during the next period.   

4.13.7 All Carers felt they were prepared for panel, though notification of panel varied 

from 5 days for two Carers, 10 days for five Carers and 14 days for eight Carers.  

4.13.8 Panel agreed that Supervising Social Workers and Managers supported the 

Carers during panel meetings.  

4.14 Social Worker and Manager Feedback on the panel process 

 

4.14.1 There were 14 feedback forms from Social Workers and Managers attending 

Panel.  7 described their experience as ‘Excellent’, 5 as ‘Good’, while 2 felt it was 

‘Satisfactory’. It was interesting to note that 2 described their Carers experience as 

‘Good’ while their own as ‘Excellent’. All confirmed that they and their Carers were 

warmly welcomed, and the majority felt Panel asked appropriate questions: 

 “It was an extremely positive discussion which also included the CSW and TM.” 

 No (to further comments)  only it was a very pleasant experience for my foster 

carers which they informed me they enjoyed attending.” 

 “This was a complex matter and due to the file not holding all the relevant 

information it was difficult for me as a new TM to fully consider all the issues the 

foster carer had shared with me and in writing to the Panel etc. The questions 

put to the SSW were very relevant. It was very apparent that the Panel wanted 

to gain a good insight into matters leading up to the carer resigning.” 

4.14.2 The reason for the two satisfactory responses included helpful feedback about 

questions and panel introductions:  

 “Some of the questions asked were unnecessary as the information was 

provided in my report.  I would rather questions should be more constructive.” 

 

  “I was called in as the children's social worker and this was my first time at the 

panel and I was not sure who all the people in the meeting were or the structure 

of the meeting.” 

4.14.3 Unfortunately, the above Children’s Social Worker joined the meeting late, after 

introductions had been completed. 

 

4.14.4 When responding to the question of how well the panel addressed ‘issues of 

difference and diversity’, 7 felt issues were addressed ‘Very well’, 6 ‘Well’ and 1 ‘Not 

very well’. There was no further information provided to help understand the last 

response. The assessor was attending with an applicant seeking fostering approval 

Page 17



 

Page 12 of 13  

and had also stated they felt some questions were unnecessary, as answers had been 

provided in the report.  They described their own and the applicant’s overall 

experience of attending the panel as ‘satisfactory’.  

4.14.5 This is important and helpful feedback and highlights the Chair’s responsibility 

to confirm that the panel may seek further clarification to information in the report. 

It is positive to note that both Managers from the Fostering and Children’s Services 
also attend panel, which is greatly appreciated.   
 
4.15 Quality Assurance Meetings 

4.15.1 Quarterly Quality Assurance meetings are attended by the Fostering and  

Children’s Care  Heads of Service, Fostering Service Manager and Managers, the 

Pane Advisor,  Panel and Vice Chair. The meeting provides the opportunity to discuss 

the quality of reports and highlight any departmental or panel issues. Quality 

assurance feedback themes highlighted by the panel are discussed and action is 

assigned and reviewed at the next meeting.  

4.16 Conclusion 
 

4.16.1 There is evidence that Haringey supports its Carers well to meet the needs of 

children placed in their care.  The Fostering Panel has functioned very well during this 

period with the support of the Panel Administration Manager and Panel Advisor and 

there is evidence that Carers, Social Workers and their managers that panel members 

are welcoming and ask relevant questions. Panel members enjoy sitting on panel and 

feel supported by the Chair and Panel Advisor.  

 

4.16.2 The Fostering Service continues to work hard to increase the quality of their 

reports, though many are already of a good standard.  Despite capacity issues they 

are beginning to improve timescales and reduce the current backlog of annual 

reviews. 

4.16.3 The appointment of a dedicated Panel Advisor is already making a difference to 

the quality of reports presented to panel and Supervising Social Workers 

understanding of processes.  

4.17 Panel advice: 

 Connected Carers assessments presented to Panel within the 16 week 

timescale rather than requiring an additional 8 week extension.  Panel would 

like consideration given to DBS checks and medical’s beginning earlier, before 

transfer to the Fostering Service to prevent delay.  

 A workflow to ensure Carers’ Annual Reviews  are booked to take place within 

the twelve months’ timescale and returned to Panel within two months of 

completion of their First Annual Review. 

 Matching reports should include a support plan and information on the Carers’ 

ability to prepare a young person for independence. 

Page 18



 

Page 13 of 13  

 An increase in direct feedback from children about the care they receive using 

any of the various tools available.   

 All Children’s Social Workers should provide written feedback for Carers’ 

Annual reviews, including when children have left the placement within the 

reviewing period.   

 All Carers are to provide regular records (logs) concerning the child in their care 

as a requirement. 

 All Personal Development Plans should be presented to Carers’ Annual 

Reviews, fully completed with details of learning outcomes.  

The paperwork for DBS and GP medicals should be discussed with prospective 

Carers during the early stages of assessments to prevent delays in presenting 

cases to panel.  

4.18 Areas for Panel development: 

 The panel will ensure they seek information on Carers’ ability to meet children’s 

cultural and identity needs. 

 The Panel Chair will endeavour to keep to time during the meeting, despite any 

delay. 

 The panel Chair will ensure panel members explain the reasons why certain 

questions are asked.  

 
5. Contribution to strategic outcomes 

 
 

 
 

6. Use of Appendices 
 
N/A 
 
 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
          N/A 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 STAYING PUT ARRANGEMENTS - THE GUIDANCE AND THE IMPACT IN HARINGEY
	8 FOSTERING PANEL ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

